
Harbor Commission

Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, January 20, 2015, 5:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall

                                  City of South Haven

Please note that the meeting will be held in South Haven City Hall, Council Chambers.

1. Call to Order

Roll Call: Chairman Jeff Arnold, Vice-Chairman Mary Stephens, Cathy Pyle, Tim Reineck, Alan 
Silverman, Tim Stegeman, Greg Sullivan.

2.  Approval of Agenda 

3.  Approval of Minutes:  December 16, 2014 Regular Meeting

4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda

5.  Marina Reports

6.  2015 Meeting Schedule

7.  North Beach Paddle Lane

8.  Black River Park Marina Management Proposal

9.  Strategic Plan

10.  Dredging Capital Improvement Plan

Member and Staff Comments

Adjourn

SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL IS BARRIER FREE AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN WILL PROVIDE 
THE NECESSARY REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED 
MATERIALS BEING CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE 
MEETING UPON SEVEN (7) DAYS NOTICE TO THE SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL.  

1



RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
Paul VandenBosch
Secretary, Harbor Commission

2



Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Tuesday, December 16, 2014, 5:30 p.m.  
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall 
 

                                        City of South Haven 

 

 
 
1. Call to Order by Jeff Arnold at 5:30 p. m.  
 

Present: Sullivan, Pyle, Reineck (arrived 5:34 p.m.), Stegeman, Stephens, Arnold 
Absent:  Silverman 
 
Also present: John Marple, Marina Manager 

 
2.  Approval of Agenda  
 

Motion by Stegeman, second by Stephens to approve the December 16, 2014 Harbor 
Commission Agenda as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3.  Approval of Minutes:   September 16, 2014 Regular Meeting 
    September 30, 2014 Workshop Meeting 
 

  Motion by Stephens, second by Pyle to approve the minutes of the September 16, 2014     
       regular meeting and the September 30, 2014 workshop meeting as written. 
 

 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
  None at this time. 
 
5.  Marina Reports 
 

VandenBosch reviewed the Marina Reports, noting record revenue for seasonal revenue 
since 2007.  
 
Stephens questioned what VandenBosch attributed the record revenue to, the new marina 
building or having the billing done by the finance department. VandenBosch conceded the 
record revenue could be attributed to both, as well as increased marketing.  

3



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

2 

 

Stephens asked when the gate was removed from Black River Park this year to which 
VandenBosch responded it was in early November. VandenBosch noted that leaving the gate 
up longer the previous season did not seem to contribute much to revenue.  
 
VandenBosch noted Lake Michigan levels are currently above average.  

 
6.  Strategic Plan 
 

VandenBosch noted that the board made it almost all the way through the Strategic Plan in 
previous meetings and he hopes to get through this tonight so it can be rewritten and brought 
back to the board for review. 
 
Beginning on page 32 with the Capital Improvement Plan, VandenBosch noted that three 
percent (3%) of revenues get transferred to the River Maintenance budget. VandenBosch 
would like to come back with a Capital Improvement Plan for dredging, noting that we 
estimated that dredging upstream from the bridge could be done for about $50,000 per year. 
VandenBosch then pointed out that the last quote from the Army Corps (to dredge the 
approach to the harbor in Lake Michigan and the former federal channel) was $360,000. 
While this was a rough estimate, according to VandenBosch, if the Harbor Commission were 
to add that responsibility (which we really don’t want) if the Army Corps has given it up, that 
would change our Capital Improvement Plan quite a bit. VandenBosch stated that he does 
not think our municipal marinas can afford to give that much to River Maintenance. We have 
to maintain our structures, our docks and at the same time make them attractive to boaters, 
so there is a limit. So we need to come back and discuss a Capital Improvement Plan for 
Dredging. We can leave it at (three) 3 to six percent (6 %) for now but will need to discuss 
this again. 
 
VandenBosch explained the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) capture along the river 
shoreline and the DDAs contribution to river maintenance.  
 
In response to a question regarding special assessments and equity, VandenBosch stated 
that such assessments have been done in the past and before you can decide if it is 
equitable you need to look at what you are dredging and who benefits.  
 
VandenBosch requested comments and concerns regarding dredging. Stegeman asked for 
clarification that VandenBosch is referring to dredging in the channel, not the slips 
themselves, to which VandenBosch responded that Stegeman is correct. Stegeman said, 
“Assuming dredging needs to be done in the channel, the slip owner has to dredge their slip, 
so it would be double the cost.” VandenBosch stated that he had a slip dredging fee of four 
hundred dollars ($400) for one dock, just as an example, and stated that it had to be dredged 
every two (2) to three (3) years. Stegeman asked whether the city facilitates individual slip 
owners to get their slips done at the same time. VandenBosch said the city did try to 
advertise the ability to do that, and some did, but not many, noting that the dredger this year 
was slow, so it was probably a good thing he did not do that many slips. The City was willing 
to take the spoil from private dredging; “We tried, but it was not very successful.”  
 

4



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

3 

 

Stegeman asked about the spoils recently being placed the park which will eventually be a 
parking lot, and whether the city has identified a place to put spoils in the future. 
VandenBosch responded that the Army Corps can do beach replenishment or pump it out 
into Lake Michigan but the city cannot. So we do not have a dredge spoil site except for the 
hill on Blue Star Highway, which is starting to become a valuable piece of property, except it 
has been a landfill and a dredge spoil site. VandenBosch said he has been looking for a 
potential site but the city does not have the money and questioned whether the River 
Maintenance Fund could be used, since we are currently building up that fund. 
 
Stephens asked, “At what point do we decide to do a special assessment? We aren’t being 
crunched with the high water but we do need to build up the dredging fund.” VandenBosch 
commented that talking about a capital improvement plan is one step toward building up the 
dredging fund. VandenBosch does not want to say we need a special assessment, but we do 
need money to do the dredging.  
 
In response to a question by Stephens regarding what has prompted special assessments in 
the past, VandenBosch said we usually seem to be in an emergency situation and then we 
have to do a rapid response. “First you need a permit, which takes three (3) to six (6) months; 
then the dredging has to be bid out; and you need to have the money. In the past, according 
to VandenBosch, there have been problems with special assessments because the dredging 
projects were focused upriver so the boaters downriver were not particularly happy with being 
assessed.  
 
Reinick asked if there is a point in time to expand the responsibility of assessments to other 
than boat and boat slip owners, to which VandenBosch responded that there is that fairness 
issue. VandenBosch explained that the DDA money does come from all properties along the 
river in the Downtown, which is not a lot, about $10,000 per year. Reinick said, “$10,000 
doesn’t seem that much compared to slip owners doing four (4) to five (5) hundred dollars 
each.” Discussion ensued regarding the overall depth expected after a dredging with 
VandenBosch explaining that upriver of the bridge depth is limited by water and sewer mains. 
“After we dredge we should see seven (7) feet with the height of the water right now. When 
sediment starts coming back in, then we will see five (5) or even four (4) feet.  
 
Stegeman asked about silt traps to which VandenBosch responded that there is one at the 
end of Kentucky Avenue and one just upstream of the boat launch. “We have not maintained 
those recently; we put our money toward major dredge projects. Commissioner Sullivan has 
reminded us about dredging the silt traps frequently, but the question is whether they are 
effective, and how effective, and we don’t really know; we spent all our money on dredging.”  
 
Stegeman noted that at the special assessment hearings you get competition between 
sailboat and power boat owners regarding how deep to dredge. 
 
Sullivan questioned the relevance of highlighted items in the strategic plan and VandenBosch 
noted that he highlighted ongoing items.  
 
After a question from Stephens, VandenBosch noted that he will bring review of the Capital 
Improvement Plan on the next Harbor agenda. 

5



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

4 

 

 
Reviewing Harbor Budget Policies, which needs to be done annually, VandenBosch noted 
that all assessment categories should identify a budget and funding mechanism, then 
informed that it is not legal in Michigan to assess new development for their potential impact 
on the harbor, prompting him to amend the statement regarding future water developments, 
replacing the word assessed with the word reviewed.  
 
Regarding Marketing and Communication, VandenBosch noted we have tried to contact 
marina owners, managers and users, but still attempting to develop ways to communicate 
safety information to boaters.  VandenBosch thinks establishing an email list is almost 
impossible, but perhaps something where people can ask to be included on an email 
broadcast would work.  

 
After a brief discussion of whether there is an app that could be used to encourage  
subscription to updates by boaters, VandenBosch noted that while bulletin boards have been 
installed at the North and South Marinas, he is not sure there is one at the Black River Park 
boat launch. Stephens commented that there is a bulletin board near the kayak launch. 
VandenBosch noted that there is also a public safety sign near the boat launch. Pyle believes 
it would be good to have upcoming events posted near the fish cleaning station so word of 
mouth can spread.  VandenBosch will try to include a bulletin board in one of the grants 
coming up for Black River Park.  

 
Discussing Marina Management, VandenBosch said a survey was done and he will have to 
bring the results to the board. Stegeman asked how communication was divided between 
transient and seasonal boaters. John Marple, Marina Manager, informed that transient 
boaters may fill out a comment card and when notices for seasonal boaters are sent out a 
customer satisfaction questionnaire is included.  
 
Stegeman asked if ideas were identified from the input on the cards and questionnaires to 
which VandenBosch responded that we have in the past. “We’ve had a lot of changes at the 
Northside Marina, much of it based on those surveys,” VandenBosch informed. Pyle asked if 
something could be included in the mailings to seasonal boaters about leaving the trailers in 
Black River Park, to which VandenBosch agreed.  
 
Following a question about whether welcome packages are being distributed, VandenBosch 
said this has been done this very well; maps are provided with all the restaurants and gifts 
have been given to the boaters. VandenBosch noted that John Marple, Marina Manager, is 
going to talk about marketing ideas later in this meeting.  
 
Stephens asked whether transient boaters are also getting such information to which Marple 
responded that the South Haven/Van Buren County Convention and Visitors Guide is made 
available which has the restaurants listed and the menus are also available on site.  
“One thing we want to do this year is to create an interactive map of our downtown 
shopping. The city has created a very good downtown map that we can use as the base for 
the interactive map. It’s pretty, it’s colorful! It’s very easy to negotiate and view. This will be 
at all our marinas.”  
 

6



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

5 

 

Stephens, thinking of customer service and repeat business, wondered if it would be 
reasonable to give the transient boaters a welcome packet, asking, “Is that something other 
marinas do?” Marple feels that the welcome packages in the past may not provide the value 
boaters want to see. “In the area of customer service, we can do a lot of stuff that boaters 
recognize as value, as opposed to a koozie and pencil.” Marple’s ideas are a little different 
than traditional views; in his business across the street certain techniques are used to show 
value, which cannot be done at the marinas, because of city rules.  
 
Marple said he is planning, in branding the Maritime District, to create a Maritime Brew 
coffee package; a couple of coffee cups with a package of coffee would be a nice gift for the 
transient boater. We are finding that seasonal boaters, more than anything else, want the 
bathrooms to be absolutely spotless. Marple also noted that the Southside Marina needs a 
gas grill like is available at the Northside Marina, which Marple noted seems like it means 
more than the pencil or ball cap.  
 
VandenBosch noted that staff training is an ongoing item, as is encouraging development of 
a marina and harbor marketing plan. 
 
Annual meetings at the marinas to hear concerns and comments regarding improvement of 
services; currently plans are to have a party-like event with refreshments.  
 
Concerning river stakeholders, VandenBosch noted that the Capital Improvement Plan calls 
for communication with the City and its boards and commissions, DEQ, DNR, the Drain 
Commission, farmers, and boaters to ensure we maintain a high quality harbor, including 
sedimentation, e-coli and  other water quality issues. 
 
VandenBosch also pointed out that the Capital Improvement plan indicates that the Clean 
Marina program should be promoted to harbor marinas and as a marketing approach. 
VandenBosch will find out exactly what that entails such as whether there is something that 
needs to be renewed.  
 
VandenBosch does not believe that agendas have been posted at the marinas but that is 
something we can do that at least during the summer.  
 
Stephens requested that boater survey results be brought to the Harbor Commission for 
their review. 
 
VandenBosch will take these comments, rewrite a draft Strategic Plan and bring back to the 
Harbor Commission for review. 

 
7.  Black River Park Canoe/Kayak Launch Grant 
 

VandenBosch said this item should have come to Harbor Commission first but staff only 
found out about it two (2) weeks before it was due and had to get City Council approval 
before it could be applied for. “This is a handicap accessible launch ramp with rollers,” per 
VandenBosch, which allows anyone, not just a person with handicaps, an easier way to 
launch their watercraft and get it back out of the water without getting their feet wet.” The 

7



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

6 

 

cost is $113,000, which VandenBosch is hoping to convince the City Manager is a General 
Fund item as opposed to funds coming from the Black River Park fund. VandenBosch noted 
that there is a big push from the governor to create a water trail up and down the coast and 
in the rivers, such as the Black River, with high quality take-out and launch areas for paddle 
craft. “The city applied and we will see; maybe we will be able to do this in the fall.” Reineck 
asked if this is totally state funded, to which VandenBosch responded that it is half state 
funded and we hope to get the match from the General Fund. Reineck thinks it should have 
an attendant, to which VandenBosch noted that it presumes the person using it knows their 
capabilities. VandenBosch said award of this grant would include some of the sidewalk that 
is included in the Black River Park Master Plan, so little by little the master plan is being 
pieced together. 

 
8.  Marketing Plan 
 

VandenBosch said the main thing we are going to do instead of going to Strictly Sail and 
Grand Rapids boat shows is to brand the marina facilities and build the website, to use the 
money for that instead as soon as possible. VandenBosch credited Marple with putting 
together a marketing plan which he will be happy to present and take comments. 
 
John Marple, Marina Manager: It is time to pause and look at the resource we have and 
brand it for a variety of reasons, noting that he is doing this for his motel as well. Currently 
going out for support for new interpretive signs; hopes Steelheaders will join us since one of 
the signs is theirs.  
 
Various components necessary to take the next step forward: brand the marina facilities in 
South Haven; create a logo; come up with little funny terms to create a certain image that 
people will begin to understand is the South Haven Municipal Marina, in conjunction with 
funding which is where the Strategic Plan comes in.  
 
Marple’s concern is where the boating industry is going; it is changing dramatically and will 
change dramatically as time goes on. Marple feels the boating public is aging and the city 
needs to be ready and prepared to confront the future, which may be connected to kayaking 
and other non-motorized activities. “There is a need to improve our facilities and our value to 
the public. We’ve done some rebounding on our revenues in three years; we’re in a really 
good spot to do the proper marketing for the marinas.” Marple wants to have a fairly nice 
website in place for our boating public with reservation systems, interactive mapping, really 
great pictures. 
 
Pyle asked if that map will include the Kal-Haven Trail and right through town to which  
Marple responded that we need to get the public out to the trail head. Pyle said her 
observation is that the public cannot get to the trailhead; they cannot find it from in front of 
their store. Pyle stressed, “Make sure that you include that information.” Marple indicated that 
the city is going to have to increase the mapping and signage. Marple mentioned the asset 
the city has for mapping in the city’s GIS Tech. 
 
Reineck noted that this port has always been a very active fishery but this is changing. We 
may be facing a very serious decline. Marple asked if what we are facing is like what 

8



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

7 

 

happened twenty (20) years ago when the perch disappeared. Reineck shared that there is a 
big issue that is already starting in Lake Huron. There was a brief discussion regarding the  
alewives. Tim Stegeman sees it a little differently than Reineck does and it was noted that the 
next three (3) to four (4) years will be very telling. 
 
Stegeman said you are talking about a focus on off-shore boaters. While Stegeman thinks 
our marina facilities are pretty good he noted that the Heritage Water Trail and the Two 
Rivers Coalition are entities that the city should make an effort to join as a community. “On a 
side note they have some really nice signs that are metal and they keep the river clean.” 
The signs are about eighty dollars ($80) apiece and Stegeman thinks the city should get 
some of those for down at the harbors. 
 
Marple noted that a mile and a half down the river there is a transformation that occurs. While 
Marple’s motel and the marinas are in a very vibrant part of the area, up to the city limits the 
vibe drastically changes. “It is beautiful up there; that is where these millennials want to be;  
the non-motorized water and bike trails is part of, a very vital part, of our future in this town. 
We do have to incorporate that in our whole plan.” 
 
VandenBosch encouraged commissioners, as they are out and about, to take notice of the 
Harbor Walk signage being redone by the Maritime Museum and others. They are working on 
replacing the signs which cost $1,000 each and they are looking for sponsors. Marple noted 
there is a sign up by Old Harbor Inn that you can see. Marple is hoping to have twenty (20) 
total frames built this winter so we can have twelve (12) to fifteen (15) up in the spring. Pyle 
asked if sponsoring a sign is a one-time commitment or an ongoing one. Marple said based 
on his experience they maybe have to be replaced every twenty-five (25) years or so. 
Stephens asked what materials they are using. Marple said we have used the modern 
technology for the covering on the description so the signage will not fade. Marple said the 
photos, the new signs look very similar to the old ones – but the materials used to make them 
are supposed to be bullet-proof. Stephens asked what the brand is on the material. Marple 
suggested Stephens contact Deb Davison with the city and Patti Reinert at the Museum for 
that information. 

 
9.  Marina Audit 
 

VandenBosch stated that this year the items identified during the audit are much smaller in 
magnitude and in some cases the problems have already been corrected. The DNR state 
system is kind of a moving target, according to VandenBosch, who noted that the state has 
made some changes again, which are probably going to work, but while we refer to a certain 
column in their table of slip prices, their reservation system is more complex than that so “I 
have to add some wording to explain that the city follows their system.” Work needs to be 
done on the marina’s refund-processing method. “Having people go to City Hall is probably 
the cleanest but not the most customer friendly way to do it. We need to give staff the ability 
to make some type of refund. We may have to talk about that one.”  
 
VandenBosch noted that auditors need more documentation included. “No transient 
discounts were provided so the auditors couldn’t do the report they wanted to do.” After 

9



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

8 

 

calling for any concerns or comments, VandenBosch stated he is pretty happy compared to 
last year and thinks this is a big improvement.  
 
Stephens asked what reservation system is used at Black River Marina to which 
VandenBosch said it is a paper system, noting that the boat launch has staff at the gate that 
focus mostly on the gate but they use a paper system and we want to upgrade that. 
Stephens asked if staff is looking at an online system to which VandenBosch responded that 
he will be bringing something to the commission next month.  
 
Member and Staff Comments 
 
Pyle requested an update on the bridge project. VandenBosch noted there are detailed 
updates on the website. Pyle commented work is progressing almost around the clock. 
Arnold said the mayor said last night (at City Council) they are on schedule. VandenBosch 
informed that scouring was found in one of the bridge piers had sediment taken away fifteen 
(15) to seventeen (17) feet deep. A change order was made to fill it with debris/concrete due 
to the erosion issues.  
 
Sullivan asked whether Kal-Haven Bikes has or is pursuing a (Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ) or Army Corps permit for a marina. VandenBosch said we have not gotten 
anything for a Zoning Permit.  A drawing we have seen shows roughly thirty (30) slips across 
from Oak Harbor, right along the Kal-Haven Trail next to the Moose Lodge is Dave Nixon’s 
campground. That may be coming before us.  
 
Sullivan asked if it goes to Zoning first to which VandenBosch responded that when  
application is made for Zoning, the application comes to Harbor Commission first. 
VandenBosch commented that the access drive does not appear to be satisfactory for 
commercial business and there may be wetland/floodplain issues. The applicant had 
resolved most of the list VandenBosch had. Discussion ensued regarding obtaining the DEQ 
permit before the granting of a Zoning permit.  
 
Stegeman thanked the Harbor Commission for supporting the project he spearheaded a year 
and one-half (1 ½) ago for the offshore buoy.  
 
Stephens thanked Stegeman for spearheading that.  
 
Sullivan echoed Stephens comment.  
 

Adjourn 
 

Motion by Stephens, second by Reineck to adjourn at  6:48  p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 

10



December 12, 2014 
Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
draft 
 

9 

 

Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

11



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
State GrantS-Bldg & Dredging -$                               -$                            -$                                          
Interest and Rents 867                                1,591                          2,000                                         
Charges for Service 6,481                             136,778                       510,000                                     
Other Revenue -                                     4,419                          8,000                                         

Total Revenues 7,348$                           # 142,788$                     520,000$                                   

Expenses: Month Actual 0
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs 609$                              51,566$                       79,792$                                     
Supplies 50                                  7,466                          10,500                                       
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 3,309                             19,855                         39,710                                       
Contractual Services 7,718                             55,172                         87,000                                       
Other Services and Charges 7,898                             48,910                         118,749                                     
Utilities 1,881                             21,858                         46,000                                       
Repairs and Maintenance 800                                10,617                         22,000                                       
Capital Outlay -                                     2,031                          -                                                
Operating Transfers Out 1,757                             10,540                         21,080                                       
Total Expenses 24,022                           -   228,014                       424,831                                     
Depreciation -                                     -                                  133,300                                     

Total Expenses and Depreciation 24,022$                         228,014$                     558,131$                                   

Net Fund Change (16,675)$                        (85,227)$                     (38,131)$                                    

Retained Earnings June 30 2,391,030$                  
Less Net Capital Assets (2,261,516)$                 

 Net Undesignated Reserves 129,514$                        Net Working Capital

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 234,498$                     
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet -                                
Deduct Receivables owed to Marina but not yet received (1,995)$                      
Deduct State amounts owed to Marina but not yet received (71)$                           
Add current expenses owed but not paid yet 3,247$                        

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 279,966$                    

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 279,966$                    

City of South Haven
Marina Fund - Fund 594

For the period ended December 31, 2014

12



Marina Fund Revenue

Marina Fund Revenue
As of December 31, 2014

Fiscal Year Ending in Revenue Operational Net
Seasonal Transient Total Expense Revenue NOTES ON OPERATIONAL EXPENSES:

2002 234,236 161,984 396,220 369,081 27,139
2003 259,840 166,084 425,924 403,463 22,461
2004 280,151 167,907 448,058 429,353 18,705 Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately $133,000 per year.
2005 282,245 170,944 453,189 479,287 -26,098 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses.
2006 300,819 173,817 474,636 517,881 -43,245 Operational Expenses do not include the annual transfer to the River Maintenance Fund
2007 343,171 170,869 514,040 471,088 42,952 of approximately $21,080 annually. 
2008 368,408 168,362 536,770 493,906 42,864
2009 377,955 166,674 544,629 492,039 52,590
2010 350,635 161,584 512,219 485,399 26,820
2011 314,270 140,546 454,816 521,900 -67,084
2012 330,660 151,046 481,706 427,390 54,316
2013 377,199 89,267 466,466 599,418 -132,952 Operating Expense excludes reimbursable dredging costs
2014 402,337 154,894 557,231 535,339 21,892
2015 43,368 93,410 136,778 217,474 -80,697

Seasonal Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 58,007 147,702 34,975 42,960 23,115 -3,846 6,199 1,554 703 1,100 22,348 19,285 354,102
2008 60,795 185,520 32,325 36,210 19,130 16,761 820 50 0 6,550 26,799 900 385,860
2009 44,784 185,069 32,390 25,955 31,150 23,488 843 50 850 900 27,990 1,000 374,469
2010 13,035 218,460 41,530 20,235 5,050 20,692 0 434 350 200 29,812 1,000 350,798
2011 43,222 157,210 38,473 31,230 12,498 -158 800 1,950 400 1,100 17,625 8,865 313,215
2012 31,810 178,650 44,840 14,750 31,795 -1,925 0 200 1,050 3,940 11,420 850 317,380
2013 29,476 169,790 80,125 37,555 28,362 14,431 0 0 750 7,735 7,300 7,545 383,069
2014 328,765 5,389 22,415 950 13,080 8,408 3,918 4,814 12,360 10,495 5,300 6,481 422,375
2015 0

Transient Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 8,528 11,494 39,340 56,647 48,986 10,983 1,553 -41 0 177,490
2008 0 0 0 11,657 8,957 29,620 53,315 53,501 11,385 630 0 0 169,065
2009 0 0 0 11,972 10,994 24,877 55,645 39,835 22,176 1,301 0 0 166,800
2010 0 0 0 8,445 9,029 25,154 52,730 40,107 8,654 1,299 0 0 145,418
2011 0 0 0 373 16,162 21,221 47,565 41,459 12,635 515 0 0 139,930
2012 0 0 0 4,684 12,448 31,740 40,344 21,935 4,392 0 -267 0 115,276
2013 0 706 3,502 2,466 3,689 12,501 33,066 40,527 17,724 843 359 542 115,924
2014 2,236 4,453 5,894 6,520 10,785 31,946 42,313 40,590 9,691 816 0 0 155,243
2015 0

13



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
State Grant -$                   # -$                     -$                           
Charges for Service 2,770                 53,184                 148,500                     
Interest and Rents 5,018                 5,038                   3,000                         
Other Revenue -                         10,000                 -                                 

Total Revenues 7,788$              # 68,222$               151,500$                  

Expenses: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs (1)$                     22,047$               42,078$                     
Supplies 94                      2,440                   3,000                         
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 2,095                 12,573                 25,145                       
Contractual Services 187                    6,968                   12,000                       
Utilities 551                    5,241                   10,050                       
Other Services and Charges 604                    3,745                   10,050                       
Repairs and Maintenance -                         -                           7,500                         
Capital Outlay -                         -                           -                                 
Operating Transfers Out to 296 483                    2,900                   5,800                         
Total Expenses 4,014                 55,913                 115,623                     

Depreciation -                         -                           50,300                       

Total Expenses and Depreciation 4,014$              55,913$               165,923$                  

Net Fund Change 3,774$               12,309$               (14,423)$                    

Retained Earnings June 30 570,415$             
Less Net Capital Assets (416,853)$            

 Net Undesignated Reserves 153,562$            

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 49,881$               
Deduct Receivables owed to BRP but not yet received -$                     
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet (47)$                     
Add(Deduct) Amount due to/ from Beach, Rev earned but not in cash -$                     
Add Accounts Payable owed but not paid yet -$                     

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 215,705$            

215,705$            

Cash & Investments Balance at month end

City of South Haven
Black River Park Fund - Fund 545

For the period ended December 31, 2014

14



Black River Park Revenues

Black River Park Revenue
As of December 31, 2014

Fiscal Year Boat Launch & Seasonal Seasonal Transient Revenue Operational Net
 Ending Parking fees Launch Permit Dock Dock Total Expense Revenue Note: Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately 

2007 84,563 9,480 42,544 10,471 147,058 90,412 56,646 $50,000 per year.
2008 96,484 11,143 37,896 10,053 155,576 97,145 58,431 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses or.
2009 93,239 9,240 37,261 11,922 151,662 99,992 51,670 Transfer to River Maintenance Fund of approximately $5,800 annually
2010 84,432 9,249 38,478 10,183 142,342 90,883 51,459
2011 66,393 8,658 42,038 3,859 120,948 113,430 7,518
2012 73,619 10,711 55,134 10,097 149,561 129,949 19,613
2013 71,440 9,150 47,844 10,980 139,414 102,155 37,259
2014 85,510 12,987 47,487 10,550 156,534 143,867 12,667
2015 30,828 1,625 13,900 6,598 52,951 53,013 -62

Boat Launching & Parking Fees Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 1,289 4,160 7,725 13,459 7,941 5,917 1,808 0 0 42,299
2008 0 0 0 831 2,768 5,172 11,030 10,046 4,709 2,170 0 0 36,726
2009 0 0 0 370 3,378 5,558 10,738 7,704 8,311 812 0 0 36,871
2010 0 0 0 527 6,102 4,284 13,972 11,844 2,799 2,186 0 0 41,714
2011 0 0 0 126 4,301 6,870 19,145 10,345 7,373 1,221 0 0 49,381
2012 0 0 0 0 7,000 10,050 19,667 9,346 4,702 2,376 1,031 112 54,285
2013 56 0 91 637 3,671 6,154 14,069 12,964 4,874 3,081 14 0 45,611
2014 0 0 0 866 5,519 6,100 11,176 13,249 5,160 1,243 0 0 43,313
2015 0

Launching - Seasonal Permit Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 2,261 4,157 2,749 1,453 0 0 0 0 0 10,620
2008 0 0 0 1,885 3,743 2,972 1,620 0 0 0 0 0 10,220
2009 0 0 0 2,770 4,924 2,608 640 0 0 0 0 0 10,942
2010 0 0 0 1,370 7,158 1,015 1,546 0 75 0 0 150 11,314
2011 0 0 0 610 75 1,403 1,222 0 0 75 0 0 3,385
2012 0 0 0 600 6,620 1,580 1,200 0 0 -270 0 0 9,730
2013 0 100 400 2,400 3,900 3,250 1,050 200 50 0 0 100 11,450
2014 100 75 175 1,875 4,500 2,425 1,275 250 0 0 0 100 10,775
2015 0

Seasonal Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 9,140 27,530 6,155 11,695 12,270 5,762 0 0 250 400 5,200 4,787 83,189
2008 7,940 45,315 9,400 11,905 12,675 -1,388 0 0 200 2,000 5,009 1,655 94,711
2009 6,865 41,215 7,085 9,125 4,990 15,095 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 89,375
2010 3,740 30,265 19,680 11,325 15,585 -1,163 1,650 0 0 0 4,650 2,369 88,101
2011 6,550 22,995 3,740 7,215 8,505 8,720 727 3,707 0 1,680 2,175 4,670 70,684
2012 3,995 20,485 9,585 6,440 18,500 1,655 3,745 0 0 600 2,000 200 67,205
2013 3,070 24,760 11,180 6,850 17,300 1,735 55 985 0 800 4,700 2,650 74,085
2014 49,950 -430 -1,870 8,490 11,425 8,755 1,870 0 200 4,660 4,500 2,670 90,220
2015 0

Transient Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 169 1,303 1,986 3,988 2,672 984 0 0 0 11,102
2008 0 0 0 329 1,562 1,609 2,571 2,904 1,204 303 0 0 10,481
2009 0 0 0 0 483 1,776 2,444 3,796 1,332 0 0 0 9,831
2010 0 0 0 0 748 930 2,657 2,479 746 0 0 0 7,560
2011 0 0 0 0 818 1,958 4,492 2,190 1,181 23 0 0 10,662
2012 0 0 0 0 604 2,221 3,567 2,325 1,125 98 0 0 9,939
2013 0 0 0 0 163 1,873 3,815 4,435 808 74 0 0 11,168
2014 0 0 0 0 911 2,944 2,412 3,592 194 0 400 0 10,453
2015 0

15



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Assessments -$                   -$                -$                         
Interest and Rents -                     -                  -                           
Other Revenue -                     -                  -                           
Operating Transfers In 3,073                 18,440             36,880                     

Total Revenues 3,073$              18,440$          36,880$                  

Expenditures: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Operating Supplies -$                   -$                500$                        
Contractual Services -                     -                  -                           
Repairs and Maintenance -                     -                  -                           
Capital Outlay -                     -                  20,000                     

Total Expenditures -$                  -$               20,500$                  

Net Fund Change 3,073$               18,440$           16,380$                   

Prior Year End Fund Balance June 30 57,106$           

Estimated YTD Fund Balance 75,546$          

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 75,546$          

Projected Cash Balance at Fiscal Year End 73,486$          

City of South Haven
River Maintenance Fund - Fund 296

For the period ended December 31, 2014

16



HARBOR COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN

COUNTIES OF VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN, MICHIGAN
______________________________

RESOLUTION NO. 15-01

A RESOLUTION SETTING MEETING DATES FOR 2015

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Harbor Commission of the City of South
Haven, Allegan and Van Buren Counties, State of Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix Street,
South Haven, Michigan, on January 20, 2015, at 5:30 p.m., local time.

Present, Boardmembers:                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                    

Absent, Boardmembers:                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                    

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Boardmember                     and  supported

by Boardmember                        .

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The regular meetings of the Harbor Commission for 2015 are hereby scheduled for the

following dates:

January 20
February 17
March 17
April 21
May 19
June 16
July 21
August 18
September 15
October 20
November 17
December 15

17



AYES:                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                      

NAYS:                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                      

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

                                                                    
Paul VandenBosch, Harbormaster

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF MICHIGAN        )
) ss.

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN)

I, Marsha Ransom, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Harbor Commission of the City of
South Haven, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the
Board at a meeting held on January 17, 2012, the original of which is on file in the office of the
Harbormaster.  Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267,
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto affixed my official signature this January 20, 2015.

                                                      

Marsha Ransom, Secretary

18



1

Paul Vandenbosch

From: Brian Dissette
Sent: Thursday, January 08, 2015 12:16 PM
To: Paul Vandenbosch; Larry Halberstadt
Cc: Roger Huff; Deb Davidson
Subject: RE: North Beach Non-Motorized Watercraft Lane Request

Larry & Paul, 
 
As the request for the non‐motorized watercraft lane is considered by your respective boards, please ask the boards to
focus their consideration on whether or not the lane is a good fit for the North Beach.  While the request is predicated
on the city’s grant application, I encourage the boards to focus on whether the lane is a good thing for the North Beach
and the users of the beach.  Please let the board members know that consideration of the grant status is secondary to 
how the city plans and uses the North Beach.   
 
If the boards are supportive of the non‐motorized watercraft  lane, then the city will  incorporate the concept  into the
North Beach grant application.  However,  if the boards are not supportive of the non‐motorized watercraft  lane, then
the  city will not  incorporate  the concept  into  the grant application, and will  research alternatives  to boost  the grant
application score. 
 
Please let me know if there are any questions and/or concerns.  Please feel free to share this correspondence with your 
board members. 
 
Thank you for the time and attention. 
 
Brian Dissette 
 

From: Brian Dissette  
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2014 4:25 PM 
To: Paul VandenBosch; Larry Halberstadt 
Cc: Roger Huff; Deb Davidson 
Subject: North Beach Non‐Motorized Watercraft Lane Request 
 
Paul & Larry, 
 
Please see the attached file related to the city’s North Beach.  The attached file requests the Harbor Commission and 
Park Commission to consider a plan to add a non‐motorized watercraft lane at the city’s North Beach. 
 
Please review the attached file at your earliest convenience.  Please let me know when the item will be sent to the 
boards for consideration. 
 
Please let me know if you have any suggested edits to the file. 
 
Thanks for the time and attention. 
 
Brian Dissette 
 
Brian Dissette // City Manager 
City of South Haven // Office (269) 637‐0750 
City Hall // 539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, MI 49090 // www.south‐haven.com 

19



30%
PCW

MEMORANDUM
DATE: December 16, 2014

TO: Brian Dissette, City of South Haven
Deb Davidson, City of South Haven

FROM: Kate Genellie, Abonmarche

CC: Tony McGhee, Abonmarche

RE: Update on the City’s Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund grant 
application for North Beach improvements

The final scores were received for the MNRTF grant application, and the City’s application
received a score of 340 points. In previous years, that score would have qualified the City’s
North Beach project for funding. However, because the state put much more money into
acquisitions  projects  this  year,  rather  than into development projects  like the North Beach
improvements,  the cut-off  score for  funding was much higher than in previous years.  Only
projects scoring 380 points and above were funded.

Looking ahead to next year, we have several recommendations that we believe will gain the
City’s grant application enough points to put it among the top scoring projects, increasing the
North Beach improvement project’s chances of being funded.  These recommendations are
based on a debrief conversation Abonmarche staff held with the MDNR to determine areas
where it would be possible to increase the project’s score in the evaluation process.  These are
the only areas identified where the City would be able to increase its existing score as the
application has maxed out all other possible points. 

The first is in a section called “Priority Project Types of the MNRTF Board.” The board gives points
to projects that focus on trails and water trails. This year, the North Beach project qualified as a
secondary trail amenity, earning the grant application 10 points in this particular category, out
of a maximum of 50 points. With some changes made to the North Beach project, next year’s
grant application could gain another 40 points, putting the grant application up to 380 points.
This was the one area which was identified where the project could gain the necessary points
to significantly increase its chance of being funded.  The changes that would gain the grant
applications  points,  according to Michigan Department  of  Natural  Resources  staff,  are  as
follows:

20



City of South Haven
North Beach – Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund

December 16, 2016
Page 2 of 2

 Link to an existing water trail. A water trail already exists on Lake Michigan’s coast, so
Abonmarche will work with the trail’s organizers in order to have North Beach included
on the trail map.

 The beach’s already planned mobimat will be extended to the water.

 A designated launch area for non-motorized watercraft would need to be identified on
the beach and related signage installed

 Kayak/canoe storage areas

 Water trail signage.

 Approximately 4-5 parking spots would be specified for kayak/canoe unloading and
trailer parking.

The other area where the City’s grant application could gain points is in the area of “Universal
Access Design.” The City’s grant application received 10 points in this area, out of a maximum
of 30. To try to increase to the maximum points possible we would:

 Abonmarche will  set  up public  meetings  with  City  residents,  and representatives  of
persons with disabilities. Our goal is to make North Beach as accessible as possible.

 Abonmarche  will  look  over  the  North  Beach  project  with  representatives  from  the
Michigan Department of Natural Resources, and attempt to discover areas that can be
improved. We will take these recommendations to the City for consideration.

With these changes, Abonmarche is confident the City will be funded during next year’s grant
application process.  If you would like to pursue a new application with this revised strategy,
we can begin working on the project at the beginning of the year to be ready for the April 1 st

submission.  We would recommend beginning with meetings with both the Park and Harbor
Commissions before proceeding to broader community meetings and finally City Commission
approval.  We would also recommend doing a web based meeting soliciting public input to
allow  property  owners  and  other  interested  parties  who  are  unable  to  make  the  local
meetings the opportunity to comment on the revised plan/approach.

If you have any comments or questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (269) 926-
4554 or via email at kgenellie@abonmarche.com

P:\_Harbor\2015\2015-01-20\03 North Beach Paddle Lane\North Beach MNRTF Memo.docx
21

mailto:kgenellie@abonmarche.com


 
 
 

City of South Haven
City Hall • 539 Phoenix Street • South Haven, Michigan 49090-1499 

Telephone (269) 637-0700 • Fax (269) 637-5319 

 

 

 

 

 

December 17, 2014 

 

To: Paul VandenBosch, Larry Halberstadt 

CC: R. Huff, D. Davidson, City Council 

From: Brian Dissette, City Manager 

Re: North Beach Non-Motorized Craft Lane 

 

I am requesting the city’s Harbor Commission and Park Commission consider plans to add a non-

motorized watercraft lane for the city’s North Beach Park.  The lane is intended to provide access to 

Lake Michigan for small non-motorized watercraft (e.g., kayaks, stand up paddleboards, and/or canoes.)  

If the plan is deemed acceptable, I am requesting both the Harbor Commission and Park Commission 

offer motions of support for the plan. 

 

Attached is an illustration of the proposed lane, which would be located near the northern boundary of 

the North Beach.  The lane would be marked using buoys, similar to the lane at the city’s South Beach 

(at the Blue Stair location.)   

 

The request for the non-motorized watercraft lane is predicated on the city’s efforts to secure grant 

funding, for the reconstruction of the public infrastructure at the North Beach.  For the past two years, 

the city has sought grant funds from the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF.)  Each of those 

grant applications has been denied, due to limited MNRTF funding.  In an effort to boost the city’s grant 

application score, and increase the likelihood of the grant being awarded, the city and Abonmarche, our 

engineering consultant, have consulted with the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) on 

possible changes to the city’s grant application.  The MDNR oversees the MNRTF grant process, and was 

able to provide some guidance on how to improve the application.  The MDNR has indicated that a non-

motorized watercraft lane, which connects to Lake Michigan, is likely to result in additional points for 

22



the city’s grant application.  As a result, staff anticipates the lane addition may be helpful in securing 

MNRTF grant funding for the North Beach project. 

 

To view the proposed plan for the North Beach, please click the following link: 

http://south-haven.com/pages/communications/projects/north_beach.pdf 

 

Attached is correspondence from Abonmarche which notes the MDNR’s desire to see a connection to 

Lake Michigan.  Included in the Abonmarche correspondence is a description of how the city can 

improve the grant scoring.  The highest recommendation is to add the non-motorized watercraft lane.  

As a result, I am requesting both the Harbor Commission and Park Commission offer support for the 

proposed non-motorized watercraft lane plan. 

 

Thank you for the time and attention.  Please let me know if there are any questions and/or concerns. 

 

Attachments:  

DRAFT Non-Motorized Watercraft Map 

Abonmarche Correspondence RE: North Beach Grant 

2014 South Haven MNRTF Grant Application 

23

http://south-haven.com/pages/communications/projects/north_beach.pdf


!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

Concession Stand 
& RestroomsProposed Kayak/SUP Lane

Buoy Spacing
Approximately 50 ft

North Beach 
Buoy Spacing

Approximately 250 ft

L A K E  
M I C H I G A N

B L A C K  R I V E R

S O U T H  B E A C H

N O R T H  
B E A C H

Water St

La
ke

 Sh
ore

 Dr

Grand Blvd

Pro
men

ad
e  

Walk D  

Walk F  

Walk E  Chicago Ave

Esplanade Plz

All Swim Area buoys are approximately 150 feet from shore.

Proposed Kayak SUP Lane
North Beach - South Haven, MI

!(
Kayak / SUP 
Lane Buoys

!( Swim Area Buoys

µ

24



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section A: Applicant Site and Project Information: North Beach Park

*Is the application for site development or land acquisition?    a Development Acquisition

*Name of Applicant (Government Unit)

 City of South Haven

*Federal ID Number

 38-6004594

*County

 Van Buren County

 *Name of Authorized Representative

 Brian Dissette

 *Title

 City Manager

*Address

539 Phoenix St

*Telephone (269) 637-0750

Fax(269) 637-5319

*City

South Haven

*State

MI

*ZIP

49090

 *E-mail

 bdissette@south-haven.com

*State House District

 District 66

*State Senate District

 District 21

*U.S. Congress District

 District 6

*Proposal Title  (Not to exceed 60 characters)

North Beach Park Improvements

*Proposal Description

 Improvements to the park will increase access for visitors while protecting natural resources for future 

generations. The improvements to the park consist of beach enhancements for better accessibility. The park 

will see numerous enhancements and new amenities in order to increase accessibility to the recreational 

opportunities and improve the park experience of residents and visitors alike.

*Address of Site

 45 Lakeshore Drive

*City, Village or Township of Site

 South Haven

*Zip

 MI

*County in which Site is located

Van Buren

*Town, Range and Section Numbers of 

Site Location

Letters must be upper-case:

 (examples: T02N, R13E, 22)

(Town) T01S (Range)R17W (Section)03

*Latitude/Longitude at park 

entrance

42.405565 -86.280626

*Park Name

North Beach Park

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
25



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section B: Project Funding and Explanation of Match Sources

SOURCES OF MATCHING FUNDS PROJECT COST AMOUNTS

*Grant amount requested (round to the nearest hundred dollars) $300,000.00

Total Match $442,300.00

Total Project Cost $742,300.00

Percentage of match commitment (Must be at least 25% of total project cost) 59%

a) General Funds or Local Restricted Funds (Applicant's own cash) $442,300.00

b) Force Account Labor/Materials (Applicant's own paid labor or materials)

c) Federal or State Funds

You have entered a value for item c). Please provide the information below for each federal or state 

program from which matching funds will be provided. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) AND RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM (RTP) ARE THE ONLY FEDERAL FUNDS THAT 

CAN BE USED AS MATCH:

*(1) Program Name *Administering Agency

*Contact Name for Administering Agency *Telephone *Amount

*Type of Funds

Grant funds awarded

Date grant funds approved

Grant funds applied for, not yet approved

Estimated approval date

Appropriated funds

Date appropriated

Other, explain

*Is documentation containing the scope of work and budget for the other grant funds included with application?

 Yes No

*Is documentation (such as grant approval letter) that verifies the availability of funds included in the 

application?

 Yes No

Check to add program information for additional State of Federal funds that will be used as Match.

Page 1 of 311/26/2014
26



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section B: Project Funding and Explanation of Match Sources

(2) Program Name Administering Agency

Contact Name for Administering Agency Telephone Amount

Type of Funds

Grant funds awarded

Date grant funds approved

Grant funds applied for, not yet approved

Estimated approval date

Appropriated funds

Date appropriated

Other, explain

Is documentation containing the scope of work and budget for the other grant funds included with application?

 Yes No

Is documentation (such as grant approval letter) that verifies the availability of funds included in the application?

 Yes No

Check to add program information for additional State of Federal funds that will be used as Match.

(3) Program Name Administering Agency

Contact Name for Administering Agency Telephone Amount

Type of Funds

Grant funds awarded

Date grant funds approved

Grant funds applied for, not yet approved

Estimated approval date

Appropriated funds

Date appropriated

Other, explain

Is documentation containing the scope of work and budget for the other grant funds included with application?

 Yes No

Is documentation (such as grant approval letter) that verifies the availability of funds included in the application?

 Yes No

d) Cash Donations

Page 2 of 311/26/2014
27



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section B: Project Funding and Explanation of Match Sources

You have entered a value for item d). Please list the individual sources and the amounts to be donated 

below.

SOURCE AMOUNT

*

Total $0

**Is a letter of intent from each donor included with the application?

 Yes No

e) Donated Labor and/or Materials

You have entered a value for item e). Please include each item to be donated, the source, dollar value, 

and how the dollar value was determined.

ITEM SOURCE DOLLAR VALUE VALUATION METHOD

*

Total $0

**Is a letter of intent from each donor included with application?

 Yes No

f) Donated Land Value (acquisition applications only)

You have entered a value for item f). Please describe how the value of the land donation was 

determined.

*

**Is a letter from the landowner committing to the donation of a portion of fair market value and any conditions 

placed upon their commitment included with application?

 Yes No

Page 3 of 311/26/2014
28



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section C2: Project Details

Development Applications ONLY

*Applicant's current control of the site:

a Fee Simple

 Lease

 Easement

 Other (describe)

*Age of Park 70 Years

*Acres 15.1

Project Cost Estimate Table

SCOPE ITEM IS SCOPE ITEM

OF UNIVERSAL DESIGN?

QUANTITY TOTAL ESTIMATED 

COST

Beach Improvement No a Yes variable $23,000.00

Bench No a Yes 10 $20,000.00

Play Equipment (including 

surfacing)

No a Yes variable $39,900.00

Signage No a Yes variable $5,000.00

Lighting No a Yes variable $13,600.00

Pathway - 6' - 8' wide No a Yes variable $27,100.00

Landscaping No a Yes variable $15,000.00

Recycle Bins No a Yes 5 $5,000.00

Bike Rack No a Yes 3 $4,600.00

Drinking Fountain No a Yes 3 $15,000.00

(New rows will appear as rows are completed and Saved)

Other: No Yes

Promenade/Plaza Walkway No a Yes variable $484,500.00

Do not list the aspects of project execution, such 

as labor, construction equipment, contingency or 

raw materials.(New rows will appear as rows are 

completed and Saved)

Permit Fees $500.00

MNRTF Sign $600.00

Subtotal $653,800.00

Engineering (These fees may not exceed 15% of subtotal) $88,500.00

Total Estimated Cost (Must equal Total Project Cost amount on 

Section B page.)

$742,300.00

Page 1 of 211/26/2014
29



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section C2: Project Details

Page 2 of 211/26/2014
30



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section D: Justification of Need

*1) If you are submitting multiple acquisition or development applications, what is the priority for 

this application? (1 = highest)

1

*2) What page(s) of your recreation plan is the need for the proposed project discussed? From: 89 To: 104

If proposed project is on only one page, please enter the page number in both boxes

*3) What was the date(s) of public meeting to discuss submission of the grant application? 3/17/2014

Additional dates: See narrative

*4) Did you gather public input from individuals with disabilities, their families, or advocates? No    a Yes

*5) Are you the primary provider of recreation services to any surrounding communities, as 

documented in your recreation plan?

No    a Yes

List Communities: South Haven Charter Township

*6) Was the application developed through collaboration with adjacent communities or school 

districts?

a No     Yes

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
31



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section E: Application History and Stewardship

 0 NO YES

*1) Questions 1 is for acquisition applications only - for development projects, leave blank and 

move to question 2.Is the applicant financially solvent to complete the acquisition transaction 

without any third party assistance (i.e. loans, lines of credit, same day closings, etc.) until partial 

reimbursement and final audit is completed (approximately 180 days after closing)?

    If yes, please provide documentation that supports this.

* 2) Has applicant received DNR recreation grant(s) in the past? a

If yes, does applicant currently have an open, active grant? a

*3) Has applicant closed, sold, or transferred any parkland or recreation facilities in the past 5 

years?

a

*4) Does applicant have a known unresolved conversion of grant-assisted parkland? (a 

conversion is a change from public outdoor recreation use to some other use)

a

*5) Does applicant have a "residents only" policy for this park or other parks or recreation 

facilities?

a

*6) Do you now or do you intend in the future to charge an entrance fee to the project site? a

If yes, fee schedule and policy for reduced entrance fees for low-income users included 

with application?

If yes, attach supporting Documentation on Required Attachments page.

*7) What is the applicant's current year budget for parks and recreation? $568,000.00

*8) What are the estimated operation and maintenance costs associated with the project? $26,500.00

Comments:

 Currently the City of South Haven has two open DNR grants. The first is for the Elkneburg Park project located 

along Elkenburg Street in the southern portion of the community. The proejct was substantially complete during 

the 2013 construction season. There was additional money available in the budget after bids were recieved for 

the initial scope so the City undertook some wish lsit items for the park not included in the initial design. This 

work has been bid and will be completed by memorial day. Secondly, the City has received a DNR grant to 

connect the Van Buren Trail into downtown South Haven and to the Kal-Haven Trail. The project has been 

designed, permitted, and bid for construction. Work will begin in March of 2014 and be completed in June of 

2014.

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
32



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Housing Development Fund Grant Agreement

NO YES UNKNOWN

*1) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that any portion of the property is or has 

been used for industrial purposes, including manufacturing and/or minerals’ processing or extraction 

(sand, gravel, oil, or gas) at this time or in the past?

a

*2) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that any portion of the property is currently 

being used or has been used in the past for a gas station, motor vehicle service or repair facility, 

commercial printing facility, dry cleaners, photo developing lab, junkyard, landfill, waste treatment, 

storage, processing or recycling or disposal facility?

a

*3) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that any of the following are or have in the 

past been stored, discarded, or used on the property – automotive or industrial batteries, pesticides or 

other chemicals used in agricultural practices, paints, industrial waste, or other chemicals in drums or 

other containers?

a

*4) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that fill dirt or other fill material of unknown 

origin is on this property or has in the past been placed on the property?

a

*5) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge of any evidence of leaks, spills, or stains 

from a substance other than water at this time or in the past?

a

*6) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that there are or have in the past been 

waste disposal pits, lagoons, or ponds on the property?

a

*7) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that there are at this time or have in the 

past been registered or unregistered storage tanks on the property?

a

*8) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that contaminated groundwater lies below 

the property?

a

*9) If there is a water well on the property, does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that 

contaminants have been identified in the well that exceeded legal standards or has the well been 

identified as contaminated by a government agency?

a

Page 1 of 311/26/2014
33



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Housing Development Fund Grant Agreement

*10) Has the landowner been notified about any current violations of environmental laws pertaining to 

activities on the property or does applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge about past violations?

a

*11) Has the landowner been notified of any environmental assessments of the property that identified a) 

the presence of hazardous substances, petroleum products, or contamination; or b) the need for further 

assessment?

a

*12) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that any hazardous substances, 

unidentified waste materials, tires, or automotive or industrial batteries have been dumped above 

ground, buried, or burned on the property?

a

*13) Is the property listed on any federal or state list of contaminated sites, including the site of a leaking 

underground storage tank?

a

*14) Does the applicant, landowner, or others have knowledge that any of the adjoining properties are 

currently being used or have been used in the past for the purposes listed in the previous questions 

1-13?

a

*15) Has an environmental assessment been completed for the site? a
If yes, provide the most current on the Required Attachments page.

NO YES UNKNOWN

*16)*16) Are permits required for the development of the site? a
If yes, please complete the following table:

TYPE OF PERMIT PERMITTING AGENCY EFFORTS TAKEN TO OBTAIN PERMIT OR 

DETERMINING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

Soil Erosion Control Van Buren County Permits will be obtained upon notification of grant awards

Joint Permit MDEQ/USACE Permits will be obtained upon notification of grant awards

If 'Yes' or 'Unknown' was selected for any of the questions on this page, please explain here:

Both Soil Erosion Control and Joitn Permit are standard permits for this type of project. The City and it's engineering consultant have successfully 

Page 2 of 311/26/2014
34



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Housing Development Fund Grant Agreement

obtained permits and completed proejcts with similar scopes on numerous occasions and securing them for the proposed project is not expected 

to be an issue

Page 3 of 311/26/2014
35



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section G: Natural Features of The Project Site

To the best of your knowledge, does the project site include:

 *Great Lakes shoreline or Great Lakes connecting water frontage?  No a Yes

 If yes, name of Great Lake or Great Lakes connecting water: Lake Michigan

 How many linear feet of shoreline or frontage? 1600

 *Inland lake frontage? a No Yes

 If yes, name of water body:

 What is the size of the total water body in acres?

 How many linear feet of frontage are on site?

 *River and/or tributary frontage?  No a Yes

 If yes, name of water body: Black River

 How many linear feet of frontage? 750

 Is the river or tributary a state natural river or a federally dedicated wild and scenic 

river?

a No Yes

 *Wetland acreage or frontage? a No Yes

 If yes, please list the number of acres of the type(s) of wetland(s) on site:

Marsh Bog Dune and swale complex

Prairie Forest Boreal Forest

Fen Shrub Type unknown

 Is documentation of type and quality with application?  No Yes

 If yes, source of information:

 *Other water acreage or frontage? a No Yes

 If yes, name of other water body:

 Is the entire water body completely within the site boundaries?  No Yes

 How many linear feet of frontage or acres of water are on site?

 *Sand dunes? a No Yes

 If yes, list the number of acres of sand dunes on the site:

 Critical       Not designed as critical, or designation unknown

 Is documentation of type and quality provided with application?  No Yes

 If yes, source of information:

 *Dedicated state or federal listed wilderness or dedicated natural area or 

Pigeon River County State Forest land or inholding?

a No Yes

 If yes, name of area:

 How many acres on site?

Page 1 of 211/26/2014
36



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section G: Natural Features of The Project Site

 *Rare species or any other significant feature as defined by the Michigan 

Natural Features Inventory?

a No Yes

 If yes, list species or feature and status.

 if too many to list here, include in the application narrative.

 Population/range locations denoted on site plan or other map?  No Yes

Page 2 of 211/26/2014
37



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section H: Wildlife Values of The Project Site

Will the proposed park or park development:

 * Protect wildlife habitat (for example, breeding grounds, winter deeryards, den sites)? a No Yes

 If yes, list species:

 How many acres of habitat does the site provide?

 *Act as a wildlife corridor between existing protected areas or buffer an existing 

protected area?

aNo Yes

 If yes, name the existing park(s) or protected area(s):

 How many acres are currently in protected status?

 Is documentation of the ecological value of adjacent protected areas and/or the 

ability of the project site to act as a corridor/buffer provided with application?

 No Yes

If yes, source of information:

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
38



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section I: Natural Resource Recreation Opportunities

Will the proposed park or park development provide new or additional:

 *Water recreation opportunities?  No a Yes

 *Motorized recreation opportunities (ORV and/or Snowmobile)? a No Yes

 *Hunting Opportunities? a No Yes

 If yes, what seasons will be available? (for example, deer/firearm)

 How many acres will be available for hunting?

 *Fishing opportunities?  No a Yes

 If yes, what type of fishing opportunities will be provided? (species/methods) Lake Perch/Lake 

Trout/Whitefish/Sal

mon/Yellow 

Perch/Walleye; line 

and rod

 *Bird watching or other nature viewing opportunities?  No a Yes

 If yes, what species can be viewed? Please see 

attached list of bird 

species which can 

be viewed from 

North Beach Park

 *Nature interpretation or education opportunities? a No Yes

 If yes, how are the interpretation or education opportunities provided? (check all that apply)

 Interpretive signage  Part time or volunteer naturalist

 Interpretive brochures  Full time naturalist

 Nature center

 Have you formed a partnership with another organization to provide   

interpretive/educational services?

 No Yes

If yes, name of organization

Provided examples of interpretive materials, descriptions of classes, and other documentation on the 

interpretive/educational services provided with application:

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
39



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section J: Public Access Opportunities

* Will the site be open to the general public?  No a Yes

List the hours open to the public:

From To Closed

Sunday Sunrise 11 PM

Monday Sunrise 11 PM

Tuesday Sunrise 11 PM

Wednesday Sunrise 11 PM

Thursday Sunrise 11 PM

Friday Sunrise 11 PM

Saturday Sunrise 11 PM

Holidays Sunrise 11 PM

Comment:

How will the public reasonably able to access this site?

a Automobile

a Boat

a Public Transportation

 Motorized Trail

a Non-Motorized Trail including Mountain Bike and Hiking Trails

a Sidewalk or Pathway

 Other (describe)

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
40



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Section K: Trails

* Is the proposed site a trail? a No  Yes  fontYes

Who is the primary intended user? (Check one)

 Hikers/Pedestrians  Road Bicyclists  Equestrians

 Mountain Bicyclists  Cross-Country Skiers  Snowmobilers

 Other motorized vehicle 

users

 Other, explain:

Who are the secondary users?

 Hikers/Pedestrians  Road Bicyclists  Equestrians

 Mountain Bicyclists  Cross-Country Skiers  Snowmobilers

 Other motorized vehicle 

users

 Other, explain:

Is the trail connected to another trail(s) or part of a larger trail network?  No Yes

 If yes, what is the name of the network?

How long Is the trail?

 Total linear feet

 Linear feet bituminous (paved)

 Linear feet boardwalk (if applicable)

 Linear feet sidewalk

 Linear feet other hard surface

What is the width of the trail?

 Linear feet

Page 1 of 111/26/2014
41



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Application Narrative

*I. Project Justification and Support:

Improvements and amenity upgrades to North Beach Park are a critical component to the City' s efforts to 

provide more diverse, community-wide, recreational opportunities to area residents and visitors as it is one the 

highest used parks within the community’s entire parks system. Improvements and upgrades to the 

community's park system were ranked as the highest prioirity by the City Commission during a recent budget 

planning session

For years, South Haven’s beaches were mostly visited by local residents and persons from surrounding 

counties. However, over the past few years, the people visiting the community’s two public beaches on Lake 

Michigan has fundamentally changed as more persons from out-of-state have learned what area residents have 

always known and flocked to these beautiful natural resources. This overall trend is in-line with what is being 

seen throughout the state’s lakefront communities. Out-of-state travelers now account for the majority of leisure 

travel spending in Michigan, according to state data. This shift occurred in 2010 and continued into 2011, 

according to the most recent data available. Data show that out-of-state visitors in 2011 spent more money on 

leisure travel in Michigan ($6.8 billion) than state residents did ($6.2 billion). Call it the Pure Michigan effect.

While the trend of people utilizing the area’s natural resources has had a significant impact on the economy 

and the quality of life for local residents, the pressure of this increased usage has placed focus on upgrades 

and improvements needed in the park to sustain and further capitalize on this positive trend. In its current state, 

the park does not meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act nor national safety regulations 

for playground equipment. The restroom facilities are currently in need of upgrades. The lack of accessible 

paths in the park, coupled with the condition of the terrain, makes it inaccessible for persons in wheelchairs or 

difficulty walking. The playground is also inaccessible and does not meet national safety requirements. The 

proposed improvements address these issues by installing universally accessible beach mats, adding 

accessible walkways, renovating and reconfiguring the restroom facilities, and new playground equipment. This 

project will improve access to the City’s most prized asset - Lake Michigan.

North Beach Park serves as a center piece of activity in the community and is utilized by a diverse group of 

residents of all age levels. Improving the park’s amenities will enable more people to utilize and enjoy North 

Beach Park. Needed North Beach Park improvements are delineated in the City of South Haven’s Recreation 

Plan (pages 89, 90, and 104) which was developed in collaboration with South Haven Charter Township, and 

South Haven Public Schools.

*II. Project Description:

The proposed improvements to North Beach Park fall into two primary categories, beach enhancements and 

access improvements. The work planned to improve the park was planned with an emphasis on little to no 

disruption to the existing natural resources. The beach area will see numerous enhancements and new 

amenities in order to increase accessibility and recreational opportunities resulting in an improvement to the 

experience of visitors. The overall project will be completed thought two phases.

Phase I of the project will focus on improving accessibility in the park as well as amenity upgrades and a 

significant increase in accessibility to the beach area itself for persons with physical handicaps and limited 

mobility. All of this will be done in a manner which reduces user impact on the parks natural resources.Beach 

access will be enhanced through the installation of seasonal, accessible beach mats and a transfer platform on 

both the north and south end of beach area. A new beach promenade will include the construction of a 12’ 

Page 1 of 311/26/2014
42



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Application Narrative

concrete walk. The playground area will have an accessible walkway mat and accessible play equipment to 

replace the current equipment which is neither universally accessible nor does it meet current safety standards. 

An accessible connection to the pier will provide for emergency access, service vehicles access, and an 

accessible pedestrian walkway connecting the beach and parking lot to the channel walk.

The proposed entryway/parking improvements will improve traffic flow within the park, create additional 

parking, and increase pedestrian safety by reducing conflicts. These roadway improvements include curb 

bump outs, crosswalks, additional and reconstructed sidewalk, and new curbed islands with dune grass 

stabilization to reduce soil erosion, additional street lights, and a new park entry sign.

Phase II will focus on improvements to the concession and restroom areas as well as additional safety 

improvements to the park. The concession area will be rebuilt with a more efficient footprint for improved 

services and improved accessibility. The concession and restroom area last received any significant 

investment a number of years ago and improvements are critical to the continued viability of the park.

The overall project scope was developed in order to ensure the greatest amount of public access to the park 

area while having a minimal impact on the environment and maintaining the natural, aesthetic qualities of the 

resource. Universal accessibility was at the forefront of the design strategy and taken into consideration for the 

location, placement and design of all amenities and enhancements. The proposed project places significant 

emphasis on ensuring that people of all abilities are able to enjoy the amenities of the park to the fullest 

possible extent, including the ability to access the Lake, and all amenities and improvements being proposed.

*III. Natural Resource Access and Protection:

Lake Michigan has received national acclaim as one of the most beautiful places in America . Renowned for its 

crystal blue waters and sandy beaches, visitors from across the country are drawn to the recreational 

opportunities provided by communities on Michigan’s “sunset coast .” North Beach Park offers this sought-after 

recreational experience, be it swimming, beach volleyball, fishing from the pier, or leisurely enjoying the park. 

The proposed improvements to North Beach Park will enhance access to the beach’s amenities , ensuring that 

people of all abilities are able to fully experience the park. The City is committed to maintaining the natural 

resources of North Beach Park and all proposed development will adhere to this assurance through low-impact 

design, such as utilizing bituminous paving, energy efficient fixtures, water conserving measures, and recycled 

materials whenever possible.

North Beach is designed to be as natural as possible with little need for maintenance and the proposed 

improvements were designed with the intention of maintaining the park’s natural feel . Currently, the Public 

Works Department staff operates a beach cleaner that picks up litter from the beach while simultaneously 

re-depositing the sand. Given the difficult financial situation affecting communities throughout Michigan , the 

proposed project was designed in a manner which would not result in an increase in the maintenance or 

operation costs beyond the levels currently being committed by the City of South Haven’s Public Works 

Department and Parks and Recreation Departments. This is important given the constant pressure on 

municipal budgets. As the park is already within the City’s park system, operation and maintenance of the park 

will continue to be under the Parks and Recreation Department’s jurisdiction . Should additional expenses be 

incurred due to operating or maintaining the project, the City of South Haven Parks and Recreation budget will 

meet the added expenses.

Page 2 of 311/26/2014
43



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Application Narrative

Seasonal residents contribute significantly to the use of City of South Haven’s recreational amenities . A report 

from the Assessor’s Office depicts the homestead residents versus the non-homestead residents. The 

information provided gives the number of residential parcels (1,989) and those claiming 100% Homestead 

(1,091). Using these figures, an approximation of the number of non- homestead households is 900 or 45%. 

Using 2.7 as the average of residents per household, an approximate number of seasonal residents is 2,430. 

Documentation supporting the service area is included in the application as Attachment D .

*IV. Other Information:

Understanding the value of recreation and its impact on quality of life, the City of South Haven is seeking to 

increase recreational opportunities for its residents and is dedicated to investing resources in ensuring 

recreational amenities are available to everyone who wishes to utilize them. The City does not require an 

entrance fee to North Beach or any public park; however, there is a fee to use the parking lot should a person 

choose to drive to the park. However, to encourage the use of the park by persons with special needs or 

physical limitations, the City has mandated that the barrier-free parking spaces in the parking lot are exempt 

from paying the fee. Additionally, park users who enter the park by either non-motorized or Public 

Transportation means are not charged a fee. North Beach is accessible by methods other than a vehicle, such 

as walking or bicycling. Attachment E contains a map showing trail connection to a regional trail system. Plans 

are in process to further increase the non- motorized accessibility to the park by building a trail to connect Van 

Buren State Park which is south of the City to existing non-motorized paths in the community. Work on the new 

trail is slated to be completd during the first half of 2014.

The City considers recreation to be an important land-use and has not closed, sold, or transferred control of any 

parkland or recreation facilities and has strict provisions in the City Charter regarding its parkland, including the 

approval of no less than two-thirds of the electorate population for the sale of any parkland. There are no parks 

within the City’s park system that have a residents only policy.

The Van Buren County Health Department conducts water tests weekly at the public beaches . Should any of the 

tests fail, due to high levels of bacteria, for example, the City will be notified and instructed to post the 

necessary signs for temporary closure. No health or safety concerns are present.

Page 3 of 311/26/2014
44



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Required Attachments for Development Projects

All location maps, site development plans, boundary maps, and other graphic information must be clear, 

legible, detailed, and appropriately labeled. Grants Management staff use these materials to help evaluate your 

application and to find and evaluate many of the sites. We must also photocopy many of the graphic materials 

in black-and-white; be sure that what you submit will photocopy legibly. Please do not submit aerial 

photographs for location maps, site development plans, or boundary maps.

REQUIRED CONTENT FOR DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

* Site Development Plan:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_North_Beach_Site_Plan_Updated_05_

12_2014.pdf

* Project Location Map(s):

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_NorthBeachProjectLocationMap.pdf

*Advance Notice of the public meeting for public comment and to pass the resolution 

for the application:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_HPPublicHearingAffidavit.pdf

* Minutes of the Public Meeting held for public comment and to pass the resolution for 

the application:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_North_Beach_Meeting_Minutes_Update

d_05_12_2014.pdf

* Certified Resolution: from the highest governing body:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_North_Beach_Certified_Resolution_Upd

ated_05_12_2014.pdf

* Notice of Intent Form and copy of letter transmitting form to regional clearinghouse 

to the regional clearinghouse:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_SHMNRTFNoticeofIntent.pdf

https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703_2-_SHMNRTFNoticeofIntentAlleganCount

y.pdf

* Photographs of the site - digital images, combine into one file

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_NorthBeachPhotosofSite.pdf

* Site Control Form and Deed (commitment letter to transfer property, for development 

projects)

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_North_Beach_MNRTF_Documentation_

of_Site_Control_Legal_Description_and_Copy_of_Deed_Updated_05_22_2014.pdf

* Documentation of local match sources,(if required in Section A1 of the application 

form)

Page 1 of 211/26/2014
45



Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Application

Organization: City of South Haven TF14-0213

Required Attachments for Development Projects

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_NorthBeachMNRTFDocumentatio

nofLocalMatchSources.doc

* Boundary Map(s) delineating the legal boundaries of the park site(s) outlined in red; 

show easements in green:

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_NorthBeachBoundaryMap.pdf

* Preliminary floor plans and elevation drawings for the proposed structures, if 

applicable

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_Preliminary_Floor_Plans_and_Drawing

_Elevations_Updated_05_12_2014.pdf

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS:

Letter(s) of commitment and support for the project:

Document Source:

https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703_3-_1LettersofSupport.pdf

Documentation justifying a larger service area, if applicable

Document Source:

Correspondence regarding regulatory permitting issues, if applicable:

Document Source:

Expert documentation, to support the project

Document Source:

Letter for Universal Design (development projects)

Document Source: https://secure1.state.mi.us/mirgs/_Upload/6703-_SHMNRTFPublicInput.pdf

Environmental Report if applicable based on Property Checklist of application form

Document Source:

Page 2 of 211/26/2014
46



January 9, 2015

TO: Harbor Commission

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: North Beach Watercraft Lane

Harbor Commission has been asked to review a proposal to add a watercraft lane to the 
North Beach.  Because this request involves watercraft, the Harbor Commission has been 
asked to provide comment and recommendation on this proposal.

As Harbormaster, I would ask the Harbor Commission to consider the following:

The proposed kayak lane is next to adjacent private property.

The lane is near the concession stand, an attractive location for beachgoers to place towels 
and sun themselves. 
 
North Beach is extremely busy with swimmers and beachgoers on warm weather days.  The 
area near the water is often fully covered by beachgoers and their towels, umbrellas, and 
beach gear.

Swimmers do not seem to stay out of boating lanes.

North Beach has considerable wave action in windy conditions.

Breaking waves can cause paddlers to lose control of their boats, and boats rolling in surf 
conditions are dangerous to swimmers.

Adding a buoyed a watercraft lane may allow motorized watercraft to use the lane, unless 
there are ordinance changes.

Currently the Van Buren County Marine Patrol has authority over watercraft on Lake 
Michigan.  It is unclear who would enforce Parks rules on boaters who temporarily store their 
boats on North Beach.  There are no dedicated staff or lifeguards at North Beach.  City Police 
would have authority, but have many other duties as well and are not able to maintain a full 
time presence at the beach.

47



December 29, 2014

TO: Harbor Commission

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Black River Park Amendment to Marina Manager Agreement

The attached amendment to marina manager agreement would add Black River Park Boat 
Launch management to the HAPA, LLC (John Marple) marina management contract.

The current contract with HAPA covers management of municipal marinas (South Side, North 
Side, Maritime and Black River Park Marina) with a compensation of $62,200 (plus 
inflationary increases).  The contract continues through November, 2017.

The amendment to marina manager agreement would add management oversight 
responsibilities for maintaining the boat launch gates, maintaining the fish cleaning station, 
cleaning of Black River Park rest rooms and brushing of docks.  

The compensation for management of these items is $6,000 per year to HAPA.  Note that the 
City also pays HAPA an amount based on cost of labor and materials to perform these 
services.  

Currently the Black River Park rest rooms are cleaned by Parks personnel.  The rest rooms 
are being cleaned once a day, however we have found that it is important to clean early in the
morning and again after the boaters have used the facilities in mid-morning.  We would like to 
move cleaning of the Black River Park restroom to marina staff.

One of the items identified as shortcomings in the audit was that marina payments made at 
Black River Park were not entered into the marina computer system, instead a paper receipt 
system was used.  This contract would allow for a computerized marina payment system at 
Black River Park.

We currently have two staff working at Black River Park.  Mr. Marple has indicated that he will 
consider hiring staff for the marina operation.

Over the past three seasons, Mr. Marple has provided a high quality level of customer service
at the municipal marinas, and has increased revenues as a result of his management.

Recommendation:

Recommend approval of the Black River Park Boat Launch management addendum.

48



1st AMENDMENT TO SOUTH HAVEN
MARINA MANAGER INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

This is  the 1st Amendment to the South Haven Marina Manager Independent Contractor Agreement,
dated as of November 5, 2012, between the City of South Haven (the “City”) and HAPA, LLC (“HAPA”)
and is intended to add to the list of services to be provided by HAPA and to the compensation paid HAPA.

1. HAPA shall have the following additional duties:

HAPA shall ensure that the Black River Park Boat Launch and Celery Pond Creek Fishing Area
restroom(s) are maintained in a clean and sanitary condition as set forth in paragraph 11 below.
HAPA shall provide general maintenance for the Black River Park Boat Launch as set forth in
Paragraph 7 above and shall brush the docks and sidewalks daily.  HAPA shall also ensure that
the Black River  Park Boat Launch fish cleaning station is maintained in a clean and sanitary
condition, including but not limited to regularly cleaning the fish cleaning station, checking for
proper operation, removing fish when the station is overloaded, and any other tasks necessary to
maintain a clean and sanitary condition.  HAPA shall  also coordinate with  electrical  and other
contractors for repairs and maintenance to the Black River Park Boat Launch. HAPA shall check
the  gates  and  parking  terminal  for  proper  operation  daily,  replace  broken  gate  boards,  and
contact and coordinate with an electrical contractor, or the parking terminal contractor, if the gate
or pay terminal is not working properly.

2. The  City  shall  pay  HAPA  an  additional  $6,000  per  year  paid  in  the  same  manner  as  other
compensation under the 2012 Agreement.

3. All other terms of the 2012 Agreement shall remain fully in effect.

The parties have signed this Agreement as of December ___, 2014.

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN

By:                                                                                       
Robert Burr, Mayor

By:                                                                                       
Amanda Morgan, City Clerk

Date signed:                             , 2014

HAPA, LLC

By:                                                                                       
John L. Marple, Owner

Date signed:                             , 2014

GRAPIDS 57671-1 345194v1

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



HARBOR COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN
Draft from December 16, 2014 Meeting

Mission Statement

In the performance of its duties the Harbor Commission shall remain committed to the 
continuous improvement of South Haven Harbor by taking a long term view of the 
harbor's capacity, it's navigability, it's value to the community, and it's use by both public
and private interests, and shall assure the health, safety and enjoyment of the harbor by
providing recommendations for its maintenance and operation.  South Haven Harbor 
includes the Lake Michigan approach, pier channel, main harbor and the Black River 
within the City limits.

Goals and Objectives

A. Safety and Navigation

1. Dredging Needs of the Harbor

Assess the river conditions and prepare to perform maintenance dredging as 
necessary.  Develop recommendations for maintaining ingress and egress to the 
harbor, including adequate depth at the pierheads.

Develop an implementation plan  that outlines the steps to be used in assessing the 
need for dredging and completing dredging.  

Maintain valid permits for maintenance dredging.   

Support obtaining grants or other funding that becomes available for harbor dredging or 
other safety improvements.  Request funding for Army Corps dredging programs from 
federal legislators.

2. Electrical Utilities

Encourage all marinas and boat owners to upgrade their electrical wiring if they are 
making any electrical improvements.  

Encourage the City to maintain marina electrical systems to appropriate codes and 
standards.

3. Fueling of Marine Vessels 

1
62



The Commission has identified the direct fueling of boats as a major safety concern and
has developed the following action steps to educate the public and enforce the laws 
regarding direct fueling:  

 Work with marina managers and commodores to have signs posted clearly 
explaining how and where boaters may fuel their boats.  

 Develop an educational campaign that can be used in local schools, boater 
safety classes, in the newspaper and other outlets.  

 Enlist support of the Van Buren County Sheriff Marine Patrol along with SHAES 
and South Haven Police to educate boaters on the dangers and laws regarding 
direct fueling.  Encourage warnings before citations and fines.  

 Send a letter to the State expressing concern and requesting a statement on the 
back of the Marina Operating Permit (MOP) stating: “Direct Fueling is against the
law and can lead to revocation of this MOP”.

 Provide the fire code letter from the SHAES Executive Director to marinas.

4. Emergency Services

Promote a close working relationship with the Sheriff Marine Patrol, Coast Guard, Coast
Guard Auxiliary, South Haven Police Department and South Haven Area Emergency 
Services.  Meet at least annually to discuss mutual issues related to harbor safety.  

Review procedures to respond to fuel and contaminant spills.  

Encourage agencies to maintain oil absorbent equipment to manage emergencies.

5. Erosion and Contaminants

Work with the DEQ, DNR, Drain Commission, Conservation District, farmers and other 
entities to ensure proper procedures are followed to reduce erosion, contaminants and 
other environmental issues in the river in the City and upstream from the City.  

Support testing for E. coli and work to resolve any related issues. 

6. Harbor Traffic Flow and Safety

Identify ways to improve traffic flow especially on weekends and during special events  

Ensure that the channel between the harbor lines is kept clear of natural obstructions, 
anchored boats and barges, and all new docks and headwalls.    

Add a light to the bridge that will signal to boaters when the bridge is closing.

7. Public Access 

Support public access and use of South Haven Harbor.   

2
63



Explore installation of a mast hoist for people launching sail boats at the boat launch.
 
Encourage safe use and operation of the Black River Park Boat Launch.

8. Signage

Evaluate the current signs and upgrade/remove as necessary.  Locate signs 
strategically so as not to block valued views. 

Increase the number of No Wake signs, including adding signs at the bridge and at the 
Southside Marina.

B. Municipal Marina Facilities

1. Municipal Marina Facilities

Promote quality facilities at all municipal marinas.   

Suport upgrade and expansion of the facilities at Maritime Marina, South Side Marina 
and Black River Park Marina.  

All facilities should be handicap accessible.  

Support the availability of bicycles for boater use at the municipal marinas.

C. Infrastructure

1. Capital Improvement Plan

Annually review the Capital Improvement Plan.   

2. Dinghy Docks and Paddle Craft Facilities

Support the Pedestrian, Bicycle and Paddle Plan which was adopted by the City Council
on 2/16/2009. Improve existing dinghy docks and access at the Dyckman bridge.

Clean out and trim Celery Pond creek to create a small craft launch site and dinghy 
dock.  

Add a dinghy dock at the Museum Marina.

Try to design dinghy docks so they would be usable for a river launch service if one 
becomes available.

3
64



3. Harborwalk 

Complete the Harborwalk to include signage, lighting, benches, landscaping etc.  

Find and analyze the original plan for the Harborwalk to determine if the plan has been 
fully implemented.  If it has not continue implementing the plan.  

Improvements are needed on the public easements through Mariner’s Dockage and 
Pier’s End Cove.  

Complete Harborwalk to create a unified concept by adding better way finding signs, 
paving materials, improve interpretative plaques etc.  

Encourage a cooperative maintenance agreement between the City and the Michigan 
Maritime Museum.

Support promotion of the Maritime District.

4. Green Space/Views

Support the acquisition and retainage of public space along waterfronts.  These areas 
should be maintained and developed for open green space and public access.  

5. Former Street Garage

Add a sea wall extension and dinghy dock at the former street garage, encouraging 
natural sea walls.  

D.   Planning

1. Future Development and Impact on Safe Navigation 

The Harbor Commission supports a detailed Harbor study that would update existing 
material from the 2001 Smith Group JJR report. To accomplish this we need to hire a 
competent and professional consultant to determine the capacity of the Black River 
Harbor and to provide guidance for future policy and decision making with a 10 year 
outlook.

The South Haven City Council should authorize a forward looking study of our Harbor to
determine if additional slips and/or services are needed.  Is our Harbor at capacity (de-
fined as its ability to safely handle its current usage)?  If not, how many additional boats 
can it handle given its current configuration?  Are additional slips needed?  If so, where 
should they be located?  If it is at capacity based upon current configuration, are there 
modifications that would permit increased capacity?  

4
65



Consider funding a comprehensive professional study.  The study should look at where 
are we and where do we want to be in the next 5 to 10 years.  This study should be 
delayed at this time due to the unusual economic conditions until a certain level of 
economic normalcy returns to the harbor.   In the interim, contact area schools, colleges
and universities seeking their help with acquiring accurate data on size, quantity and 
frequency of use of vessels using the Black River.  Analyze the new numbers from the 
study with a focus on the last paragraph on page 4 of the JJR memorandum of 
4/23/2001 which discusses the capacity of the river based on channel widths.

Additionally the needs assessment should look at existing facilities to determine if they 
currently serve our needs, how they could be modified to best serve our needs today 
and what needs to be changed to best serve our future needs?  

A process needs to be defined, created, promoted and followed setting development 
goals and criteria based on consideration of our harbor size, location and boating and 
community concerns.

Continue to monitor and provide guidance on the new waterfront park extension east of 
the Steelheader’s fishing wall and its impact on safety and navigation

Any additional waterfront development or development affecting the waterfront must be 
scrutinized very carefully, both before, during and after the planned construction.  In 
advance of any construction the impact upon the harbor (which includes the Black River
to the City limits) by the project as well as the proposed methods of construction of the 
project (remember Sherman Hills) must be carefully examined and evaluated.  The 
impact on boat traffic (if, for example, additional slips are proposed) and the impact 
upon navigation must be evaluated.  Of concern is erosion of soils flowing into the river 
caused by poor and unsupervised developments.

As proposals for the development are presented, the Harbor Commission will consider 
issues of need, safety, navigational hazards and environmental concerns and make ap-
propriate recommendations. 

2. Development Approval Role

All projects using harbor maintenance funds and all developments along the river 
should come before the Harbor Commission for their recommendation.   

The Harbor Commission should have a role in any changes that affect marinas, river or 
harbor.  

3. Natural Environment Preservation

Encourage all marinas to achieve Clean Marina Status.  

5
66



E. Funding 

1. Ongoing Dredging Project Funding

Investigate other sources of revenue for dredging.     

Recommend an increase from 3% to 6% of marina revenues set aside for the River 
Maintenance budget.

Recognize the need for additional funding for dredging and allocate some of the tax col-
lection from the increased assessments of property and homes on the river for dredg-
ing.  

Request funding from the DDA to allocate toward harbor maintenance.   

Determine if the current method of calculating special assessments for dredging is equi-
table and or if changes are needed.

2. Capital Improvement Plan

The Commission duties include an annual review of this plan along with the Black River 
Maintenance document. As part of that review recommendations must be made in a 
timely manner.

3. Harbor Budget Policies

It is the duty of the Commission to review and make recommendations to the annual 
River Maintenance, Marina Fund and Black River Park budgets in a timely manner so 
they can be considered during the budget adoption process of the City Council.     

All assessment categories should identify a budget and funding mechanism. Consider 
for example: 

 Future waterfront developments should be specifically reviewed for their impact 
on the harbor.

 Establish a broad based assessment (as broad as possible) to fund the 
maintenance of the harbor.  

 Analyze the current income from the operation of the Municipal Marinas and 
Public Launch site to get a full understanding of the usage and to determine an 
appropriate contribution to harbor maintenance.

  

F. Marketing and Communication

1. Emergency Communication

6
67



Be in a position to communicate safety information for ongoing and emergency issues 
with marina owners, managers and users.  Develop ways to communicate safety 
information with boaters.   

Establish an email list or app for contact with boaters and harbor stakeholders.

Install bulletin boards at the boat launch.

Place updates on projects and grant applications on bulletin boards.

2. Marina Management

Evaluate management of municipal marinas.   

There needs to be more communication with transient and seasonal boaters using ma-
rina facilities and the boat launch.  Create and distribute feedback cards to survey cus-
tomer service and desired amenities.  Do customer satisfaction surveys on a regular ba-
sis and conduct appropriate follow up.

Send customer satisfaction surveys with invoices to seasonal boaters.

Include welcome packages with information on the City and local businesses, gifts and 
coupons.  Inform boaters where they can rent bicycles and vehicles.  

Install informational bulletin boards at all municipal marinas to inform boaters and the 
public of events, phone numbers, tourist information etc.  

Improve on-going staff training.   

Encourage development of a marina and harbor marketing plan on an annual basis.   

Include nonmotorized watercraft and users in the harbor marketing plan.
 
The Commission needs to schedule annual meetings at the marinas to hear concerns 
and suggestions for improvements of services.  

3. River Stakeholders

Communicate with the City and its boards and commissions as well as the DEQ, DNR, 
Drain Commission, farmers, boaters etc. to ensure we maintain a high quality harbor, 
including water quality issues. 

Promote the Clean Marina program to harbor marinas and as a marketing approach for 
the harbor.

Participate in Heritage Water Trail and Two Rivers Coalition organizations.

7
68



Use bulletin boards at marinas and boat launch to post Harbor Commission meeting 
schedule, agendas and Harbor Commission contact information.

4. Survey and Feedback Procedures

Survey boaters and slip owners to determine what services they want and how it should
be provided.  Gather feedback and implement changes on dredging and other issues.

Survey all boaters, slip owners and marina owners regarding river maintenance and 
safety issues.  Use an email list to inform and listen to river stakeholders.

8
69



December 22, 2014

TO: Harbor Commission

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Dredging Capital Plan

The attached capital plan is an attempt to estimate the long term cost to maintain dredging 
depths in South Haven Harbor and the annual revenue required to support those expenses. 
The plan includes a number of assumptions.

Revenues

The revenue assumption is based on 2012 revenue from the Black River Park Fund, Marina 
Fund and DDA.  2012 was the year of highest transfer of revenue from these funds to the 
River Maintenance Fund (the fund which supports dredging).

In addition, the “Other Revenue” line was used to add an amount to balance out revenues 
and expenditures.  The “Other Revenue” line is the missing revenue needed to cover the 
expenses above the current level of contribution to the River Maintenance Fund.

Expenses

The year after a major dredging, no expenses are expected.  Then, for three years, spot 
dredging of $10,000 per year is estimated.  Every fifth year, a major dredging project is 
projected.  

River Dredging refers to dredging upriver from the Dyckman Bridge to 5.85 feet below low 
water datum.  The project cost is estimated at $200,000.  This is a rough estimate based on 
previous experience.

The Channel Dredging refers to dredging the federal channel from the Dyckman Bridge to 
Lake Michigan to a level of 14 feet below low water datum.  No marina dredging is included in
this estimate.  The project cost is estimated at $350,000, based on an estimate provided by 
the Army Corps to dredge the 2014 river bottom profile.

The capital improvement plan does not include an adjustment for inflation.  It is assumed that 
both expenses and revenues will increase with inflation.

This plan does not include permitting and engineering expenses, which can be significant.  

70



Dredging Capital Plan

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 2012 2013

Revenues

Black River Park Fund 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,800

Marina Fund 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 21,080

DDA Contribution 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Special Assessments

Other Revenue 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000 63,000

Interest Income 2,083 4,009 5,972 7,975 38 2,122 4,048 6,013 8,017 80 2,165

Revenue Total 104,174 106,257 108,183 110,146 112,149 104,212 106,296 108,222 110,187 112,191 104,254 106,339

Expenses
Spot Dredging 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

River Dredging 159,000 159,000
Channel Dredging 350,000 350,000

Total over period

Expenses Total 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 509,000 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 509,000 0 10,000 1,088,000

Annual Balance 104,174 96,257 98,183 100,146 -396,851 104,212 96,296 98,222 100,187 -396,809 104,254 96,339

Fund Balance 104,174 200,431 298,614 398,760 1,910 106,122 202,418 300,641 400,827 4,018 108,272 204,612

Average Annual Expense 90,667

River Dredging is upstream from the Dyckman Bridge
Channel Dredging is from the Dyckman Bridge to Lake Michigan
No Marina Dredging is included in these estimates

71



1

Paul Vandenbosch

From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE <Thomas.W.OBryan@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Thursday, September 18, 2014 3:27 PM
To: Paul Vandenbosch
Cc: Wright, David L LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE; O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE
Subject: RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED)

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Paul, if you want to use this process it does take a long time as the agreement needs to go to Washington.  So the 
sooner we start the better. A letter of intent would have to be submitted and that letter will have to follow a very 
stringent format.  So if you plan to do this let us know and we will send a sample letter to follow.  Also we would like to 
review the letter before final submission.   
 
We can accept funds to do dredging outside our authorized channel, but only if in conjunction with doing work in our 
channel and magnitude of outside dredging is limited in comparison to the Federal channel dredging (and adjacent to 
the Federal dredging to some extent).  If you  are considering this for the future, you will want to plan accordingly ‐ i.e., 
the USACE probably couldn't accept the funds if only the marina dredging were being proposed. 
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 
Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE  
Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 9:51 AM 
To: 'Paul Vandenbosch' 
Cc: Wright, David L LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE 
Subject: RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Absolutely we can reduce the depth to meet the funds available.  Typical mod/demob cost is hard to say but I would say 
in the range of 20,000 to 55,000 depending on how close the contractors are when they bid on the project. 
 
The minimum cost for the project would be what can you afford and we can tailor the project around those funds but 
100,000 would be better.  We have done it for others as low as 30,000 but we only dredged 4,000 cys and had a 
contractor very close to that project location. 
 
As far as the municipal dredging not in the federal channel I would say yes but I have copied my upper management in 
Detroit to help confirm that answer. 
 
Thanks for the questions. 
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 

72



2

Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Paul Vandenbosch [mailto:pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 9:42 AM 
To: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Tom; 
 
A few questions on a contributed funds agreement process: 
 
Can we reduce the depth to reduce the cost of the project?  For example, if the project depth on sheet one is normally a 
project depth of 14 feet, can we request a project depth of 12 foot to reduce cost? 
 
What is a typical mobilization cost?   
 
What would you recommend as a minimum project cost?  $50,000?  $100,000? 
 
Can a contributed funds agreement process be used to dredge municipal marinas?  We don't need this currently but if it 
could be done under the process we may be interested in the future. 
 
Thanks 
 
Paul VandenBosch 
Assistant City Manager/Harbormaster 
 
City of South Haven 
pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com 
269‐637‐0775 Desk 
269‐637‐5319 Fax 
539 Phoenix Street 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE [mailto:Thomas.W.OBryan@usace.army.mil]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 11:51 AM 
To: Paul Vandenbosch 
Cc: Wright, David L LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE; Schropp, Chris C LRE; Gerczak, David M LRE 
Subject: RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Paul,  
 
At this time we do not have any funds in the FY15 Presidents budget for dredging in South Haven.  As you most likely 
know we are having funding issues for shallow draft harbors, (South Haven being one of those).  
 

73



3

I have talked to upper management in the Detroit District office and would say likelihood of getting funding via a work 
plan (if there is such a thing next FY) is pretty low. 
 
If the City of South Haven would like to enter into a contributed funds agreement with us under which they provide their 
funding to the USACE for us to contract to dredge then we should start that process very soon as that does take some 
time to ensure the work could be contracted for and completed prior to the cities event.   
 
We have done this before with other shallow draft harbor communities and have been successful. I am sure you would 
like to know how much it would costs, I would use a ballpark of $10 per cubic yard, the quantity in South Haven at this 
time to project depth of 14 feet is 16,000 cys on sheet one and project depth of 12 feet on sheet 2 at 17,000 cys for a 
total dredge quantity of 35,000 cys at $10 per cy would be $350,000. Obviously we can always dredge just to your needs 
and not all of the federal channel. I am estimating high just so there are no surprises later.  We have gotten some bids 
this year for about $7 per cy but have to include mod and demob.  
 
Another solution is for the City to obtain a dredging permit for the Federal Navigation Channel and contract it thru your 
own processes.  This has also been done by shallow draft communities.  Your next question would be how much saving 
would that amount to.  The contract may be the same dollar amount but the USCAE will have a fee to do this work which 
would include preparing the contract documents, advertising, awarding, doing prior an after surveys, and administering 
the contract documents. 
 
Let us know how you would like to proceed and feel free to call me to discuss. 
 
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 
Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Paul Vandenbosch [mailto:pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com]  
Sent: Friday, August 22, 2014 10:08 AM 
To: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Tom; 
 
In 2015 South Haven will be hosting the finish of the Queen's Cup, the South Shore Yacht Club's annual sailboat race. 
 
In order to be prepared for this event, the City of South Haven would like to know if there is an opportunity to contract 
with the Army Corps to perform Spring 2015 maintenance dredging in the approach and channel of the South Haven 
pierheads. 
 
Our main concern is the depth in Lake Michigan just outside the pierheads, however the channel may also be an issue. 
 
The event starts on June 26, 2015.  Our goal would be to have the approach dredged out to the maintenance depth of 
14 foot in the area where breaking waves can become a problem near the pierheads.   However, based on Spring 2015 
soundings we may have additional areas of concern. 
 
Our budget is somewhat limited but we are very motivated to make sure there are no problems for this event. 
 
Is there a possibility that we can contract with the Army Corps to have work performed in Spring 2015? 
 

74



4

Paul VandenBosch 
Assistant City Manager/Harbormaster 
 
City of South Haven 
pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com 
269‐637‐0775 Desk 
269‐637‐5319 Fax 
539 Phoenix Street 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE [mailto:Thomas.W.O'Bryan@usace.army.mil]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 8:59 AM 
To: Paul Vandenbosch; Brian Dissette 
Cc: Schropp, Chris C LRE; Bouwhuis, Brian J LRE 
Subject: FW: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Attached is the condition survey that was completed at South Haven on 25 April 2014.  It is also posted on our web site.
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 
Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Schmidt, Eric D LRE  
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 7:11 AM 
To: Holly, Donald D LRE; Cusimano, Derek H LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE; Mahoney, Mollie H (Mollie) LRE; Kempisty, Bill 
J LRE; Imbrunone, Jon T LRE; Kelley, Crystal A LRE; Rose, Steven S LRE; Wright, David L LRE; O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE; 
Schropp, Chris C LRE 
Subject: South Haven condition surevy (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Good Morning, 
 
Attached is the condition survey for South Haven harbor, conducted on April 25th, 2014. 
 
v/r 
Eric Schmidt 
 
Civil Engineer Technician  
Army Corps of Engineers  
Lake Michigan Area Office  
307 S Harbor Dr  
Grand Haven, MI 49417  
(616) 842‐5510 ext. 25528  

75



76



77



  95 West Main Street

P.O. Box 1088

Benton Harbor, MI 49023

T 269.927.2295

F 269.927.1017

www.abonmarche.com

Project Name:
Project Number:

Date: 4/29/2013

Northside Marina -8' LWD UNIT

7400 CYD
7500 CYD
8100 CYD
600 CYD

$13,734.00 DOLLARS

Southside Marina -8' LWD UNIT

1380 CYD
1500 CYD
1450 CYD
-50 CYD

-$1,144.50 DOLLARS

TURNING BASIN AREA -8' LWD UNIT

300 CYD
0 CYD

600 CYD
600 CYD

$13,734.00 DOLLARS

FRIENDS GOODWILL CHANNEL -12' LWD UNIT

2285 CYD
0 CYD

2990 CYD
2990 CYD

$68,441.10 DOLLARS

UPPER BLACK RIVER (CITY LIMITS - DYCKMAN AVE. BRIDGE) -5.85' LWD UNIT

3200 CYD
0 CYD

6950 CYD
6950 CYD

$159,085.50 DOLLARS

CONTRACT STATUS

Original Contract Amount (Northside & Southside Marinas) = $236,653.00

Previous Change Orders = $0.00

Previous Contract Amount = $236,653.00

Net Change (This Change Order) = $253,850.10

Current Contract Amount = $490,503.10

Notes:

City Commission has already approved a change in the contract in the amount of $86,000 on March 5th, 2013 

for the addition of the Turning Basin area and Friends Goodwill Channel 

Volume based on City provided bathymetric survey:
Bid volume currently in plans, construction documents, and contract:
Volume based on Abonmarche bathymetric survey (4-15-13):
Proposed quantity change to overall contract:
Proposed $ amount change to overall contract (at $22.89/CYD bid price)

Volume based on City provided bathymetric survey:
Bid volume currently in plans, construction documents, and contract:
Volume based on Abonmarche bathymetric survey (4-15-13):
Proposed quantity change to overall contract:
Proposed $ amount change to overall contract (at $22.89/CYD bid price)

Volume based on City provided bathymetric survey:
Bid volume currently in plans, construction documents, and contract:
Volume based on Abonmarche bathymetric survey (4-15-13):
Proposed quantity change to overall contract:
Proposed $ amount change to overall contract (at $22.89/CYD bid price)

Volume based on City provided bathymetric survey:
Bid volume currently in plans, construction documents, and contract:
Volume based on Abonmarche bathymetric survey (4-15-13):
Proposed quantity change to overall contract:
Proposed $ amount change to overall contract (at $22.89/CYD bid price)

Volume based on City provided bathymetric survey:
Bid volume currently in plans, construction documents, and contract:
Volume based on Abonmarche bathymetric survey (4-15-13):
Proposed quantity change to overall contract:

South Haven Dredging Projects
12-0712

Calculated by: Corey A. Kandow, P.E.

Change Order #1 - Quantity Breakdown

Proposed $ amount change to overall contract (at $22.89/CYD bid price)

P:\_Projects\2012 PROJECTS\12-0712 South Haven Maintenance Dredging\Estimates\2013-04-29 South Haven Dredging - Change Order #1

4/29/2013

Page 1 of 1
78



BLACK RIVER

NORTHSIDE MARINA
DREDGE TO -8 LWD

Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
MARINA MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=100'

12-0712

3 6

Item Description

 Unit Quantity

Mobilization, Max. $10,000

LS 1

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Measures
LS 1

Excavation / Dredging and Disposal
Cyd 7,500

BL
AC

K 
RI

VE
R 

ST
.

80'

555'

430'

380'

8,100

E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

M
A

R
IN

A
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 3
, 4

/2
9/

20
13

 4
:1

5:
15

 P
M

, d
la

rs
on

, 1
:1

79



BLACK RIVER

135'

315'

220'

365'

SOUTHSIDE MARINA
DREDGE TO -8 LWD

Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
MARINA MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=100'

12-0712

4 6

Item Description

 Unit Quantity

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Measures
LS 1

Excavation / Dredging and Disposal
Cyd 1,500

1,450

E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

M
A

R
IN

A
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 4
, 4

/2
9/

20
13

 4
:1

5:
21

 P
M

, d
la

rs
on

, 1
:1

80



Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
MARINA MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=100'

12-0712

1 1

100'

MUSEUM MARINA
PERMIT DREDGE AREA

TURNING BASIN DREDGE AREA
569.50 (-8 LWD)
DREDGE VOLUME = 300 CYDS

FRIENDS GOODWILL CHANNEL
565.50 (-12 LWD)

ADDITIONAL DREDGE VOLUME = 2,285 CYDS
2,990

600

3,590 CYDS TOTAL

E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

M
A

R
IN

A
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 T
U

R
N

IN
G

 B
A

SI
N

 1
2 

LW
D

, 4
/2

9/
20

13
 4

:1
5:

26
 P

M
, d

la
rs

on
, 1

:1

81



BLACK RIVER

SEE SHEET 2

BLACK RIVER PARK

120'

DREDGE  CHANNEL

CAUTION: BURIED UTILITY.
8" CAST IRON WATER MAIN (1966).
APPROXIMATELY 90' UPSTREAM FROM
DYCKMAN BRIDGE.  APPROXIMATE ELEVATION
OF TOP OF UTILITY AT CHANNEL CENTERLINE IS
567.5'.

CAUTION: BURIED UTILITY.
12" CAST IRON SANITARY SEWER (1933).
APPROXIMATELY 210' UPSTREAM OF DYCKMAN
BRIDGE.  APPROXIMATE ELEVATION OF TOP OF
UTILITY AT CENTERLINE OF CHANNEL IS 568.8'.

Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
BLACK RIVER
MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=200'

12-0712

1 3E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

R
IV

ER
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 1
, 4

/2
9/

20
13

 4
:0

6:
59

 P
M

, d
la

rs
on

, 1
:1

82



BLACK RIVERSE
E 

SH
EE

T 
1

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
3

110'

DREDGE  CHANNEL

CAUTION: BURIED UTILITY.
12" DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN IN STEEL
CASING (1968).
APPROXIMATELY 4,420' UPSTREAM FROM
DYCKMAN BRIDGE.  APPROXIMATE ELEVATION
OF TOP OF UTILITY AT CHANNEL CENTERLINE IS
565.7'.

CAUTION: BURIED UTILITY.
16" DUCTILE IRON SANITARY SEWER IN STEEL

CASING (1968).  APPROXIMATELY 4,420'
UPSTREAM OF DYCKMAN BRIDGE.

APPROXIMATE ELEVATION OF TOP OF UTILITY AT
CENTERLINE OF CHANNEL IS 565.7'.

Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
BLACK RIVER
MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=200'

12-0712

2 3E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

R
IV

ER
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 2
, 4

/2
9/

20
13

 4
:0

7:
04

 P
M

, d
la

rs
on

, 1
:1

83



BL
AC

K 
RI

VE
R

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
2

AP
PR

O
X

IM
AT

E
C

IT
Y 

LI
M

IT

90'

DREDGE  CHANNEL

Confidence By Design

SHEET

JOB #:

SCALE:

OF

PREPARED FOR:

COPYRIGHT 2012 - ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Engineering
Architecture

Land Surveying
Marina/Waterfront

Community Planning
Landscape Architecture

Development Services

95 West Main Street
Benton Harbor,  MI  49022
T 269.927.2295
F 269.927.1017

Manistee, MI
South Haven, MI
South Bend,IN
Fort Wayne, IN

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
BLACK RIVER
MAINTENANCE DREDGING

1"=200'

12-0712

3 3E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\1

2-
07

12
 S

O
U

TH
 H

A
V

EN
 M

A
IN

T 
D

R
ED

G
IN

G
\d

w
g\

12
-0

71
2 

R
IV

ER
 D

R
ED

G
E.

dw
g,

 3
, 4

/2
9/

20
13

 4
:0

7:
09

 P
M

, d
la

rs
on

, 1
:1

84


	Harbor Commission Agenda, Jan 20, 2015
	Dec 16, 2014 Minutes
	Reports
	Res 15-01 Meeting Dates
	North Beach Watercraft Lane
	Black River Park Management Agreement
	Harbor Commission Strategic Plan
	Dredging Capital Plan
	Harbor Comm Agenda cover 2015-01-20.pdf
	Tuesday, January 20, 2015, 5:30 p.m.




